
LAW OFFICE OF

DAVID A. LUDDER
A Professional Limited Liability Company

January 4, 2019

Delivered Via Certified Mail
Return Receipt Requested
No. 7016 3010 0000 6310 2343

Hon. Mitchell Knight, Mayor
P. O. Box 219
Clio, Alabama  36017

Re: Notice of Violation and Intent to File Suit under the Clean Water Act

Dear Mayor Knight:

Pursuant to the Clean Water Act § 505, 33 U.S.C. § 1365, and 40 C.F.R. Part 135,
Subpart A, you are hereby notified that after the expiration of 60 days following service of this
notice, the Choctawhatchee Riverkeeper and Environmental Defense Alliance may file suit
against the City of Clio for violations of NPDES Permit No. AL0067181 issued by the Alabama
Department of Environmental Management pursuant to Alabama’s NPDES permit program
approved by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency under Clean Water Act § 402(b), 33
U.S.C. § 1342(b), and for violations of Consent Order No. 16-061-CWP issued by the Alabama
Department of Environmental Management to the City of Clio with respect to NPDES Permit
No. AL0067181 and conditions thereof.

I. Violations

A. Permit Discharge Limit Violations

Pursuant to § 402(b) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(b), the Alabama
Department of Environmental Management issued NPDES Permit No. AL0067181 authorizing
the City of Clio to discharge pollutants from the Clio Lagoon, located at on Alex Shipman Road,
subject to specific discharge limitations in Part I, A., 1. and 2. of the permit.  The City of Clio has
discharged pollutants from Outfall 0011 into the Pea River in violation of the discharge
limitations of NPDES Permit No. AL0067181 from January 2013 through October 2015 as
identified in Table 1A attached hereto and from November 2015 through November 2018 as
identified in Table 1B attached hereto.  Additional violations may have occurred subsequent to
November 2018.

B. Administrative Order Violations

Pursuant to Ala. Code 1975 § 22-22A-5, the Alabama Department of Environmental
Management issued Consent Order No. 16-061-CWP to the City of Clio with respect to NPDES
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Permit No. AL0067181 and conditions thereof on June 8, 2016.  Consent Order No. 16-061-
CWP imposed the following requirements:

F.   The Permittee shall fully comply with the Permit limitations for Total
Ammonia Nitrogen and Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand within 730
days from issuance of this Consent Order.

G.   The Permittee shall comply with all other terms, conditions, and
limitations of the Permit immediately upon issuance of this Consent Order.

The City of Clio violated the requirement of paragraph F of Consent Order No. 16-061-
CWP as identified in Table 2A attached hereto.

The City of Clio violated the requirement of paragraph G of Consent Order No. 16-061-
CWP as identified in Table 2B attached hereto.

II. History of Violations and Previous Enforcement Actions

On August 16, 1999, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management issued a
Notice of Violation to the City of Clio in which it cited discharge limit violations for the period
from February 1999 through May 1999. 

On February 29, 2000, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management issued a
Notice of Violation to the City of Clio in which it cited discharge limit violations for the period
from October 1999 through December 1999.

On January 25, 2001, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management issued a
Notice of Violation to the City of Clio in which it cited effluent violations for the period from
February 2000 through July 2000.

On December 19, 2001, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management and
City of Clio entered into Consent Order No. 02-043-CWP in which it cited effluent violations for
the period from February 2000 through December 2000.  The Order directed the City to develop
a compliance plan and to achieve compliance within 12 months.  The Order assessed a penalty of
$2,200.

On October 19, 2005, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management issued a
Warning Letter to the City of Clio in which it cited a discharge limit violation in August 2005.

On November 6, 2006, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management issued a
Warning Letter to the City of Clio in which it cited a discharge limit violation in August 2006.
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On May 6, 2009, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management issued a
Notice of Violation to the City of Clio in which it cited discharge limit violations occurring in
February and December of 2008.

On October 16, 2009, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management issued a
Notice of Violation to the City of Clio in which it cited a discharge limit violation occurring in
June 2009 and failure to properly maintain treatment facilities and monitoring devices.

On October 24, 2011, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management issued a
Notice of Violation to the City of Clio in which it cited discharge limit violations occurring in
December 2009 and failure to submit discharge monitoring reports for eight months during 2010-
2011 and failure to submit monitoring data in October 2009 and May 2010. 

On June 8, 2016, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management and City of
Clio entered into Consent Order No. 16-061-CWP in which it cited discharge limit violations
during the period from April 2014 through August 2015.  The Order also cited failure to submit
discharge monitoring reports, failure to submit timely discharge monitoring reports, and failure to
submit complete monitoring reports.  The Order directed the City to achieve compliance with all
discharge limits on or before June 8, 2018 and to submit all missing discharge monitoring reports
within 30 days.  The Order assessed a penalty of $8,650.  

The Alabama Department of Environmental Management has not pursued further
enforcement action against the City of Clio subsequent to the June 8, 2016 deadline for
compliance with Consent Order No. 16-061-CWP.  The history of enforcement actions by the
Alabama Department of Environmental Management is graphically represented in Figure 1
attached hereto. 

III. Sanctions

The Clean Water Act authorizes the court to enforce a NPDES permit or condition
thereof and a state order with respect to a NPDES permit or condition thereof.  Clean Water Act
§ 505(a), 33 U.S.C. § 1365(a).  The court may assess civil penalties up to $37,500 per day per
violation for violations that occurred after December 6, 2013 through November 2, 2015 and
$53,484 per day per violation for violations that occurred after November 2, 2015.  Clean Water
Act §§ 505(a) and 309(d), 33 U.S.C. §§ 1365(a) and 1319(d); Federal Civil Penalties Inflation
Adjustment Act of 1990, Pub. L. 101–410, Oct. 5, 1990, 104 Stat. 890, as amended by Pub. L.
104–134, title III, § 31001(s)(1), Apr. 26, 1996, 110 Stat. 1321–373; Federal Civil Penalties
Inflation Adjustment Improvements Act of 2015, Pub. L. 105–362, title XIII, § 1301(a), Nov. 10,
1998, 112 Stat. 3293; Pub. L. 114–74, title VII, § 701(b), Nov. 2, 2015, 129 Stat. 599; 40 C.F.R.
§ 19.4.  Each day a violation continues is a separate violation. Violations of monthly average
limits and weekly average limits are counted as violations for each day of the month and each
day of the week, respectively.  See Atlantic States Legal Found. Inc. v. Tyson Foods, Inc., 897
F.2d 1128 (11th Cir. 1990).  In addition, the Clean Water Act authorizes the award of costs of
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litigation (including reasonable attorney and expert witness fees) to any prevailing or
substantially prevailing party, whenever the court determines that such an award is appropriate. 
Clean Water Act § 505(d), 33 U.S.C. § 1365(d). 

Suit may be avoided if these violations have ceased before the expiration 60 days
following service of this notice.  “Service” is defined as the postmark date of this notice.  40
C.F.R. § 135.2(c).  Please advise the undersigned of any measures which you may undertake
which you contend have permanently abated these violations before suit is filed.  Please direct all
communications to the undersigned attorney for the Choctawhatchee Riverkeeper, Inc. and
Environmental Defense Alliance.

Sincerely,

David A. Ludder
Attorney for
Choctawhatchee Riverkeeper, Inc. &
Environmental Defense Alliance

cc:  

Hon. Lance R. LeFleur, Director
Alabama Department of Environmental Management
P.O. Box 301463
Montgomery, Alabama  36130-1463

Hon. Andrew Wheeler, Acting Administrator
Mail Code 1101A
Environmental Protection Agency
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C.  20460

Hon. Mary S. Walker, Acting Regional Administrator
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 4
61 Forsyth Street SW
Atlanta, Georgia  30303

Michael W. Mullen
Riverkeeper, Choctawhatchee Riverkeeper, Inc.
President, Environmental Defense Alliance
207 Gail Street
Troy, Alabama  36079
Tel. (334) 807-1365
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Month 
Ending Outfall Parameter Description Limit Type

Violation-
Days

7/31/2013 0011 BOD, carb-5 day, 20 deg C, percent removal MO AV MN >= 85 % 83 % 31

9/30/2015 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 16.5 mg/L 30.0 mg/L 7
9/30/2015 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 19.0 mg/L 30
8/31/2015 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 13.0 mg/L 31
7/31/2015 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 14.0 mg/L 31
7/31/2015 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 16.5 mg/L 18.0 mg/L 7
6/30/2015 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 13.0 mg/L 30
5/31/2015 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 15.0 mg/L 31
5/31/2015 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 16.5 mg/L 20.0 mg/L 7
4/30/2015 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 16.5 mg/L 29.0 mg/L 7
4/30/2015 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 17.0 mg/L 30
3/31/2015 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 16.5 mg/L 21.0 mg/L 7
3/31/2015 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 15.0 mg/L 31

12/31/2014 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 13.1 mg/L 31
10/31/2014 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 13.0 mg/L 31
10/31/2014 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 16.5 mg/L 17.8 mg/L 7
5/31/2014 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 37.5 mg/L 67.4 mg/L 7
5/31/2014 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 25.0 mg/L 48.0 mg/L 31
2/28/2014 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 37.5 mg/L 67.4 mg/L 7
2/28/2014 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 25.0 mg/L 48.0 mg/L 28

5/31/2014 0011 Chlorine, total residual DAILY MX <= 0.18 mg/L 0.2 mg/L 1

5/31/2014 0011 Coliform, fecal general DAILY MX <= 2000 CFU/100mL 6000 CFU/100mL 1
4/30/2014 0011 Coliform, fecal general DAILY MX <= 2000 CFU/100mL 2700 CFU/100mL 1
2/28/2014 0011 Coliform, fecal general DAILY MX <= 2000 CFU/100mL 6000 CFU/100mL 1
1/31/2014 0011 Coliform, fecal general MO AVG <= 1000 CFU/100mL 3674 CFU/100mL 31

TABLE 1A
Discharge Limit Violations

AL0067181: CLIO LAGOON, CLIO, AL 36017
Date Range: 01/01/2013 to 10/31/2015

Discharge Limit
Discharge 

Measurement

Table 1A Page 1 of 4



Month 
Ending Outfall Parameter Description Limit Type

Violation-
Days

1/31/2014 0011 Coliform, fecal general DAILY MX <= 2000 CFU/100mL 5000 CFU/100mL 1
12/31/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general DAILY MX <= 2000 CFU/100mL 5200 CFU/100mL 1
12/31/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general MO AVG <= 1000 CFU/100mL 2698 CFU/100mL 31
11/30/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general DAILY MX <= 2000 CFU/100mL 2300 CFU/100mL 1
11/30/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general MO AVG <= 1000 CFU/100mL 2090 CFU/100mL 30
10/31/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general DAILY MX <= 2000 CFU/100mL 6000 CFU/100mL 1
10/31/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general MO AVG <= 1000 CFU/100mL 2190 CFU/100mL 31
9/30/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general MO AVG <= 200 CFU/100mL 1587 CFU/100mL 30
9/30/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general DAILY MX <= 2000 CFU/100mL 2100 CFU/100mL 1
8/31/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general MO AVG <= 200 CFU/100mL 2097 CFU/100mL 31
8/31/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general DAILY MX <= 2000 CFU/100mL 4400 CFU/100mL 1
6/30/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general DAILY MX <= 2000 CFU/100mL 4300 CFU/100mL 1
6/30/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general MO AVG <= 200 CFU/100mL 3144 CFU/100mL 30
5/31/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general MO AVG <= 1000 CFU/100mL 2775 CFU/100mL 31
5/31/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general DAILY MX <= 2000 CFU/100mL 5300 CFU/100mL 1
2/28/2013 0011 Coliform, fecal general DAILY MX <= 2000 CFU/100mL 6000 CFU/100mL 1

0011
9/30/2015 0011 E. coli MO AVG <= 126 #/100mL 205 CFU/100mL 30

12/31/2014 0011 E. coli DAILY MX <= 2507 #/100mL 3300 CFU/100mL 1

10/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 4.0 mg/L 31
10/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 8.0 mg/L 7
7/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 39 lbs/day 31
7/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 22.0 mg/L 7
7/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 22.0 mg/L 31
7/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 40 lbs/day 7
6/30/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 17.8 lbs/day 30
6/30/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 16.0 mg/L 7
6/30/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 17.8 lbs/day 30
6/30/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 16.0 mg/L 30
5/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 33 lbs/day 7

TABLE 1A (con't)

Discharge Limit
Discharge 

Measurement
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Month 
Ending Outfall Parameter Description Limit Type

Violation-
Days

5/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 30.0 mg/L 7
5/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 21 lbs/day 31
5/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 19.0 mg/L 31
4/30/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 29.0 mg/L 7
4/30/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 29.0 mg/L 30
4/30/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 35 lbs/day 7
4/30/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 35 lbs/day 30
3/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 27.0 mg/L 31
3/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 25 lbs/day 31
3/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 43 lbs/day 7
3/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 46.0 mg/L 7
2/28/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 5.0 mg/L 7
2/28/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 4.0 mg/L 28
1/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 4.3 mg/L 31
1/31/2015 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 5.8 mg/L 7

11/30/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 12.0 mg/L 30
11/30/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 15 lbs/day 30
11/30/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 20.0 mg/L 7
11/30/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 25 lbs/day 7
10/31/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 14.0 mg/L 7
10/31/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 7.0 mg/L 31
10/31/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 16.1 lbs/day 7
6/30/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 16.0 mg/L 30
5/31/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 22.5 mg/L 45.1 mg/L 7
5/31/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 37.8 mg/L 31
4/30/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 15.6 mg/L 30
4/30/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 22.5 mg/L 24.6 mg/L 7
2/28/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 22.5 mg/L 45.1 mg/L 7
2/28/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 37.8 mg/L 28
1/31/2014 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 22.5 mg/L 24.9 mg/L 7

12/31/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 22.5 mg/L 25.2 mg/L 7

TABLE 1A (con't)

Discharge Limit
Discharge 

Measurement
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Month 
Ending Outfall Parameter Description Limit Type

Violation-
Days

11/30/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 22.5 mg/L 30
11/30/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 22.5 mg/L 23.6 mg/L 7
10/31/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 26.3 mg/L 31
10/31/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 22.5 mg/L 27.9 mg/L 7
9/30/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 27.6 mg/L 30
9/30/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 22.5 mg/L 28.2 mg/L 7
8/31/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 22.0 mg/L 31
6/30/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 27.4 mg/L 30
6/30/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 22.5 mg/L 29.7 mg/L 7
5/31/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 15.9 mg/L 31
4/30/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 22.5 mg/L 26.3 mg/L 7
4/30/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 23.3 mg/L 30
3/31/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 19.9 mg/L 31
2/28/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 22.5 mg/L 31.0 mg/L 7
2/28/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 25.4 mg/L 28
1/31/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 15.0 mg/L 23.5 mg/L 31
1/31/2013 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 22.5 mg/L 26.9 mg/L 7

8/31/2013 0011 Oxygen, dissolved (DO) DAILY MN >= 5.0 mg/L 4.6 mg/L 1

9/30/2015 0011 pH DAILY MX <= 9.0 SU 10 SU 1

9/30/2014 0011 Solids, suspended percent removal MO AV MN >= 65.0 % 57 % 30

TOTAL 1878

TABLE 1A (con't)

Discharge Limit
Discharge 

Measurement
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Month 
Ending Outfall Parameter Description Limit Type

Violation-
Days

6/30/2018 0011 BOD, carb-5 day, 20 deg C, percent removal MO AV MN >= 85.0 % 0.98 % 30
2/28/2018 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 36.6 lbs/day 38.2 lbs/day 28
2/28/2018 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 16 mg/L 28
9/30/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 16.4 mg/L 30
7/31/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 13 mg/L 31
5/31/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 55.0 lbs/day 73 lbs/day 7
5/31/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 16.5 mg/L 28 mg/L 7
5/31/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 28 mg/L 31
5/31/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 36.6 lbs/day 73 lbs/day 31
4/30/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 36.6 lbs/day 45 lbs/day 30
4/30/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 16.5 mg/L 22 mg/L 7
4/30/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 22 mg/L 30
3/31/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 55.0 lbs/day 94 lbs/day 7
3/31/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 36.6 lbs/day 94 lbs/day 31
3/31/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 55.0 mg/L 37 mg/L 7
3/31/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 37 mg/L 31
2/28/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 16 mg/L 28
1/31/2017 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 16 mg/L 31

12/31/2016 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 36.6 lbs/day 41 lbs/day 31
12/31/2016 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C WKLY AVG <= 16.5 mg/L 23 mg/L 7
12/31/2016 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 23 mg/L 31
11/30/2016 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 12 mg/L 30
4/30/2016 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 12 mg/L 30
2/29/2016 0011 BOD, carbonaceous, 05 day, 20 C MO AVG <= 11.0 mg/L 12 mg/L 28

TABLE 1B
Discharge Limit Violations

AL0067181: CLIO LAGOON, CLIO, AL 36017
Date Range: 11/01/2015 to 11/31/2018

Discharge Limit
Discharge 

Measurement
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Month 
Ending Outfall Parameter Description Limit Type

Violation-
Days

6/30/2018 0011 E. coli MO AVG <= 126 #/100mL 160 #/100mL 30
9/30/2017 0011 E. coli MO AVG <= 126 #/100mL 1154 #/100mL 30
9/30/2017 0011 E. coli DAILY MX <= 487 #/100mL 2300 #/100mL 1
5/31/2017 0011 E. coli MO AVG <= 548 #/100mL 765 #/100mL 31
4/30/2017 0011 E. coli MO AVG <= 548 #/100mL 1145 #/100mL 30
3/31/2017 0011 E. coli MO AVG <= 548 #/100mL 760 #/100mL 31

10/31/2016 0011 E. coli MO AVG <= 548 #/100mL 880 #/100mL 31
9/30/2016 0011 E. coli MO AVG <= 126 #/100mL 1520 #/100mL 30
9/30/2016 0011 E. coli DAILY MX <= 487 #/100mL 2800 #/100mL 1
6/30/2016 0011 E. coli MO AVG <= 126 #/100mL 670 #/100mL 30
6/30/2016 0011 E. coli DAILY MX <= 487 #/100mL 700 #/100mL 1

11/30/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 4.5 mg/L 30
10/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 3.44 mg/L 31
9/30/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 4 mg/L 30
8/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 16 lbs/day 31
8/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 10 mg/L 7
8/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 16 lbs/day 7
8/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 10 mg/L 31
7/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 11.8 mg/L 31
7/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 14 lbs/day 31
7/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 11.8 mg/L 7
6/30/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 19.7 mg/L 30
6/30/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 kg/d 39 lbs/day 7
6/30/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 19.7 mg/L 7
6/30/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 39 lbs/day 30
5/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 41 lbs/day 7
5/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 17 mg/L 7
5/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 41 lbs/day 31
5/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 17 mg/L 31

TABLE 1B (con't)

Discharge Limit
Discharge 

Measurement
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Month 
Ending Outfall Parameter Description Limit Type

Violation-
Days

4/30/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 37.9 lbs/day 30
4/30/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 16.3 mg/L 30
4/30/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 37.9 lbs/day 7
4/30/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 16.3 mg/L 7
3/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 27.5 mg/L 7
3/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 27.5 mg/L 31
3/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 63.9 lbs/day 31
3/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 63.9 lbs/day 7
2/28/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 64 lbs/day 7
2/28/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 64 lbs/day 28
2/28/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 26.7 mg/L 7
2/28/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 26.7 mg/L 28
1/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 12 mg/L 7
1/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 28 lbs/day 31
1/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 12 mg/L 31
1/31/2018 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 28 lbs/day 7

12/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 24 mg/L 31
12/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 56 lbs/day 31
12/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 24 mg/L 7
12/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 56 lbs/day 7
11/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 46 lbs/day 30
11/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 24 mg/L 30
11/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 24 mg/L 7
11/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 46 lbs/day 7
10/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 52 lbs/day 31
10/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 22 mg/L 31
10/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 22 mg/L 31
10/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 52 lbs/day 7
9/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 30 lbs/day 30

TABLE 1B (con't)

Discharge Limit
Discharge 

Measurement
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Month 
Ending Outfall Parameter Description Limit Type

Violation-
Days

9/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 16.2 mg/L 7
9/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 16.3 mg/L 30
9/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 30 lbs/day 7
8/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 23 mg/L 31
8/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 23 mg/L 31
8/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 58 lbs/day 31
8/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 58 lbs/day 7
7/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 68 lbs/day 7
7/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 30 mg/L 31
7/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 68 lbs/day 31
7/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 30 mg/L 7
6/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 26.5 mg/L 7
6/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 61 lbs/day 30
6/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 61 lbs/day 7
6/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 26.5 mg/L 30
5/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 58 lbs/day 31
5/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 58 lbs/day 7
5/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 25 mg/L 7
5/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 25 mg/L 31
4/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 53 lbs/day 30
4/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 26 mg/L 7
4/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 53 lbs/day 7
4/30/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 26 mg/L 30
3/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 24 mg/L 7
3/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 62 lbs/day 7
3/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 62 lbs/day 31
3/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 24 mg/L 31
2/28/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 64 lbs/day 28
2/28/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 22 mg/L 28

TABLE 1B (con't)

Discharge Limit
Discharge 

Measurement
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Month 
Ending Outfall Parameter Description Limit Type

Violation-
Days

2/28/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 22 mg/L 7
2/28/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 64 lbs/day 7
1/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 21 mg/L 31
1/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 21 mg/L 7
1/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 37 lbs/day 31
1/31/2017 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 37 lbs/day 7

12/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 34 lbs/day 7
12/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 34 lbs/day 31
12/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 19 mg/L 31
12/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 19 mg/L 7
11/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 27 lbs/day 7
11/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 15 mg/L 30
11/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 27 lbs/day 30
11/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 15 mg/L 7
10/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 20 mg/L 7
10/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 35 lbs/day 7
10/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 20 mg/L 31
10/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 35 lbs/day 31
9/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 21 lbs/day 7
9/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 12 mg/L 30
9/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 12 mg/L 7
9/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 21 lbs/day 30
6/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 29.9 mg/L 30
6/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 53 lbs/day 7
6/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 50 lbs/day 30
6/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 31.8 mg/L 7
5/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 57.6 lbs/day 31
5/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 62.6 lbs/day 7

TABLE 1B (con't)

Discharge Limit
Discharge 

Measurement
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Month 
Ending Outfall Parameter Description Limit Type

Violation-
Days

5/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 28 mg/L 7
5/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 25.8 mg/L 31
4/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 73 lbs/day 7
4/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 17 mg/L 30
4/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 34 mg/L 7
4/30/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 37 lbs/day 30
2/29/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 22 lbs/day 7
2/29/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 11 lbs/day 28
2/29/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 13 mg/L 7
2/29/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 6 mg/L 28
1/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 15.0 lbs/day 34 lbs/day 7
1/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 3.0 mg/L 25 mg/L 31
1/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) WKLY AVG <= 4.5 mg/L 32 mg/L 7
1/31/2016 0011 Nitrogen, ammonia total (as N) MO AVG <= 10.0 lbs/day 27 lbs/day 31

11/30/2016 0011 Oxygen, dissolved (DO) DAILY MN >= 6.0 mg/L 5.61 mg/L 1

2/29/2016 0011 pH DAILY MX <= 9.0 SU 9.7 SU 1

6/30/2018 0011 Solids, suspended percent removal MO AV MN >= 65.0 % 0.97 % 30

TOTAL 3158

TABLE 1B (con't)

Discharge Limit
Discharge 

Measurement
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AlaFile E-Notice

To: ROBERT D. TAMBLING
rtambling@ago.state.al.us

06-CV-2019-900010.00

NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF BARBOUR COUNTY, ALABAMA

The following complaint was FILED on 2/19/2019 2:45:23 PM

ALABAMA ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE ET AL V. CITY OF CLIO
06-CV-2019-900010.00

Notice Date: 2/19/2019 2:45:23 PM

PAIGE SMITH
CIRCUIT COURT CLERK

BARBOUR COUNTY, ALABAMA

CLAYTON, AL, 36016

334-775-8366
paige.smith@alacourt.gov

P.O. BOX 219


























































